RECEIJED AND FILED

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT CLERK'S OFFICE USDC PR
FOR THE DISTRICT OF PUERTO RICO

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

¥.

SIXTO JORGE DIAZ COLON,

Defendant.

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES:

e A7 4%
2021 ENE 26 mildi13

INDICTMENT

CRIMINALNO. 21-D[F  (gAG

CRIMINAL VIOLATIONS:
18 UL5.C. 5% 1951, 2
(Count One)

18 U.S.C. §§ 875(d), 2
(Count Twa)

18US.C. 61519
(Count Three)

INDICTMENT

Unless otherwise specified, at all times material to this Indictment:

Relevant Individuals and Entities

1. Defendant SIXTO JORGE DIAZ COLOXN, also known as S5IXTO GEORGE (DIAZ

COLON), had an employment agreement with the Spanish Broadcasting System, Inc.

(SBS) until on or about July 18, 2019.

2, Person | is a former Government subcontractor, and a relative of a senior former

official of the Government of Puerto Rico, Person 2.

3, Person 3 was the Governor of Puerto Rico from on or aboutl January 2017 until his

resignation on or about August 2, 2019,

4. Person 4 was the Secretary of Public Affairs for the Governor’s mansion and the

Executive Director for the Ports Authority serving under Person 3 from on or about
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March 20018 until on or aboot Mowember 8, 2019, Person 4 worked ul Lhe Govemor's
munsien in San Juan, Puetto Rico, which is knowa it Spanish as La Fortaleza,

3. Compeny A end Compeny B are two public relations companies established in
collabocation with DIAZ COLAN that have wotked as contractors tor the goveenimeng
of Puerto Rica,

. “Tclegram is 8 clowd-besed tnstant messeaging and voice-over-Intemet Potocol {YolP)
service diad allows is users - send messages, exchange phoographs, videos,
documents_ and other files theouzh the lnieomed

COUNT ONE

I8 ULE.C.55 L951,2
(Alempted Extortion)

DIAZ COLOM learns of damaging information and contacts Ferson 4

1. Om or abour Febmuaey L, 2009, Person | contacred DAL COLON and mer wiith
him at DIAZ COLOMN'S apattment on of aboot Feheoary 3, 2009, Poveon 1 infonncd DIAZ
COLON that he possessed 8 cony af Tolegram messages that Peeson | oclaimed contained
tncciminuting information obout Peeson 3 und olher public oficials in Pegon 3% adminsicacioa,
[ruring that meeting, Person | showed MAZ COLON a binder with the Telegram messages but
did net provide a copy te DEAZ COLON.

8. Frem on o aboun Janeary 26, 2009, waul on oe aboul July 26, 2019, DAZ COLAON
atwd Perzon | carmmunicated veganding iclcase of the Telogram messages.  For cxample, an
Februury 28, 2012, DIAZ COLON senl a text message to Person 1, which read, as translated feom
apanish, as follows: “Brothes, dom’t get lost. Let's grab e coflee and we can cetch up, Lat's be
stratepc in the next step. #lasgolooeand,”
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Q. Co June 20, 2019, Person 4 cecelved a Telepram message from DIAZ COLON
which read, in translatton tror Spanish, as follows:

“Dude, if Forladera does oot stop essing anoand with [Pecsan 2],
[Ferson 1] has overwhelming cvidence (o fuck this Adminisoation
starting with [Ferson 3], According ta [Person 1], it is you and
Fortaleza behind this attack apainst [Person 2]

L0, After sending that Telegram meszage, DIAEL COLON contacted Poeson 4 gnd
requesied an in-pereon meeting.  On o abool June 21, 2009, Perion 4 and BLAS COLON mel al
a teslaurant in San Juan,  During that moeting, MAZ COLOWN told Ferson 4 that Peeson 1 had a
hindee full of Telegran messages thet would destroy Person 5, Person 3's close wssociales, and
other members of Person 3'5 politicel pory, DIAZ COLON asked Persen 4 10 help him with
several goveenment gonceacts through which he reccived compensation.

1. Onorebowt Tuly 8 200%, 11 pupes of Telezoum messupees invelving Peeson 3 and
others were publicly celeased by media ouilets in Puerto Rice,  Additional papes were roleased by
the medis on o about July 11,2018, On ot about July 13,2019, 382 pages of Telegram megsages

were released by & bocal online media outet.

" release uf siditional Telcarum messages

12. Onorabout July 13, 201% afer some of the Telermm messuees wen: made publie,
Persun 4 contacus] DIAZ COLON, who asked (o meer Person 4 in person,

3. Ow or aboue July 16, 219, Person 4 and DMAT COLON cxchanped Telepmam
messures und apresd Lo meet Lhat doy ac & restaurant owned in part by DIAZ COLON. During

that meeting, DTAL COLON told Porson 4 the folleadng:
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14,

. Person 1 possesscd eicgram messages thal had not yet heen celoased publicly and

thut Person 1 hed ubluined (com the celtphone of Peson 2;

. The Telegeam megsages contained damaging infermation about Fetson 3 and othet

members of Person 3°s staff and political paoty, including demaging information
about Persan 4;
Person 1 intended to *bum down Puertn Rico™ by roleasing ghese Tolegram

messupres unless Person | necsived approszimately $3030_000:

- DAL COLON would reccive the paymeent an behalf of Person 1 through 2

corpomlion thu DAY, COLON owned thel did not have any contracts with e
EI.'I-'I.I'EII'II:'HEHT; and

Person 4 aiso needed b (1} provide peyment for “talent,” by which DEAZ COLOMN
meunl poyvments W other weell-koowsn individuals edw wiould publicly sdvovate on
hehalfof Pergon 3, and (2] ohtain the reinstgtement of cemtgin government conieag
benefiting DIAZA COLON with the Puerto Rice Depurtment of Trewsory amd the
Poerto Rice Office of Manarement and Budget, that were wor renewed following
Pecson 2'5 temeyal @3 the head of those offices an of abauk Jue 24, 201 49,

[n responss ta the potential relepse of addivconal T'elepram messayres, Person 4 told

DIAZ COLODN ai their meenng on or about July 16, 20019, thal Peeson 4 wag “atvaid™, and that

Parson 4 did mor wane to "get buned,” or “cven mors hurned™ than be alkcady wan.

15,

Jn or about July 168, 2009, while still at their meeting at the restuumant, DIAZ

COLON senr Pecson 4 a Teleprat message identifying the companies whose ¢onfracts were

caocelled: "[Company A] (for OGF),  [Company B] (for Depurtment of Trewsure )",
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16, On or abowt July [9, 20019, Person 4 senc DEAZ COLON a Tologram message (o
eonfiem that Porson 4 was working on the matters they hed discussed.  DLAY COLON
acknowledged reccipt by sending a Telegram message.

1T, Onorabout July 26, 2019, DIAZE COLON was contacied by agents of (the Fedgral
Bureau of Investigation.

18, Persond did not pay DTAZ COLON the nwoncy ho dowanded.  Additionally, aftce
Persom 3 eesigned as Governor on or about August 2, 2019, the contreets requested by DEAS
COLON were nol nenewed.

19.  Frony onar about June 20, 200% ta Julv 1%, 2019, in the District of Puerto Rica, the
defendant,

STXTO JORGE DIAZ COLON,
did knewingly and unlawfully ohstiuet, delay and affeet and attempt b obstruct, delay and affect
in any way and degres, commerce and the mavement of any &micle ac commodity il commetse,
by extortion, as tha wwom is defined incCTtle 18, United Stetes Code, Section 193], and aided and
abetted such offense; that s, DIAZ COLGHN allernpted 1o obein pooperty from Persen 4 and

wihers, with consent, indweed by wrongiul vee of fear

All in weolateow of Tacle 18, Lrniled States Code, Sections 1931 and 3,

Page 5 of 8



COLUNT TW1
18 0.5.C. &5 875(d) 2

{[nterstale Extortion)

20 The allepanons comtained it patagraphs 1 theough 18 aF this dicment arc
realleged and incotpatated heegin by rofceenec.

1. From on or aboeul June 28, 20109, w1 Lhe Dastrict of Peeno Rieo, (the defendans,

SIXTO JORLGE DMAL COLDN,

with the itent to extort money wnd a thing of value, did Knowangly traasmat ininderstate and
foreign comterse, any communication contgining a threat to injuve the property or repotation of
the addre=ese and othera, and aided and abetted swch offense, that is, in or about tee: duls menlionsd
above, the delendant DIAZ COLADN did tranamit certain threats to Person 4 to wit, that DLAZ
COLON waould facilitate the publishing of Telezmam messapes vonlsining dumoging in[ormamon
ehout Person 4 and others undess DEAZ COLON ceceived 5300000 and other things of valus.

22, On or abaut the date hisred below, the defendant, STXTO JORGE DIAZ COLDN,
far the purposcs of transmitting 8 threat to injure the property or ceputation of the addresses and
others, lransmilled or cauzed to be transmitted by means of winc conmunications in interstate

cotneerce, the following communicatinma:

Date Wire Communication

June 24, 2012 DHAE COLON zent a Telegram message i Person 4
suyiny, “Dude, il Fortulesn does nol suop messing arsund
with |Persan 2], [Person 1] has overwhelmine evidence
to Fuck this Administration staring with [Person 3].
According e [Person L], it is wow and Fortaleze kehind
this uttuck wrwinst [Temson 217

ALl in viclation of "15tde 18, United Stutes Coube, Sections B75{d) and 2,
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COUNT THREE
IRLSC. 51519
{Diemstruction, Alleratson, oF Falsification of Records in s Faderal Thvestigation}
23. The allegations contained in pargrraphs 1 throusxh |8 of this Indicment ere
reullerez] and meorparaled hecein by reference.
24, Cri 0w bt July 28, 2019, in the District of Peerto Rico, and within the jorisdiction
of this Court,
STXTO JRGE DIAZL COLON,
the defondant herein, knowingly altered, destrayed, concealed, and coversd up records,

decumnents, and tangible objects, Lhar is, Telegran messages that DIAZ COHAN cxchanged

with Person 4, with the intent to impede, obstruct, and infleenes the investipation and proper
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administration of the Federal Bureau of Investigation’s investigation into allegations that IMAZ
COLON was attempting to extort Person 4 and others, a matter within the jurisdiction of the
Department of Justice, a departiment and agency of the United States.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1519,

TRUE BILL
FOREPERSOMN
”EII'I:Z 1 = .h._'“ -I...'ﬁ"'-}
W.STEPHEN MULDROW COREY R. AMUNDSON
United States Attorney Chief

Public Integrity Section
LS. Department of Justice

- ;u'lfll. r?fmti I ‘f‘;':"j

UAM Y. FERNANDEZ-GONZALEZ MICHAEL N. LANG

ant Upited States Att Trial Attorney
y Chief, Asset Recovery Public Integrity Section
and Money Laimdering
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